Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT OF
)

PUBLIC SAFETY,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 00-2107 PO




)

DENNIS G. McCLOUD,
)




)



Respondent.
)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW


On August 7, 2000, the Director of the Department of Public Safety (Director) filed a complaint seeking to discipline the peace officer certificate of Dennis G. McCloud based on embezzlement.  We convened a hearing on the complaint on February 5, 2001.  Assistant Attorney General Da-Niel A. Cunningham represented the Director.  Though notified of the time and date of the hearing, McCloud appeared neither in person nor through an attorney.  Our reporter filed the transcript on February 9, 2001.   

Findings of Fact

1. McCloud has held peace officer Certificate No. ###-##-#### since August 8, 1989.  

2. McCloud was employed as an officer of the Hannibal, Missouri, Police Department (the Department).  Among his duties was raising funds for the Department’s Drug Abuse Resistance Education program (DARE).  

3. McCloud was also a member of the Hannibal chapter of the Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks (the Elks).  In November 1994, McCloud solicited a $2,000 donation from the Elks to DARE.  In 1995, 1996, 1997, and 1998, at McCloud’s suggestion, the Elks put on country and western music shows to raise money for DARE.  McCloud controlled the post office box and checking accounts used to receive, maintain, and disburse proceeds from the shows and other contributions to the DARE program.  

4. From June 1992 through October 1998, McCloud diverted portions of the proceeds from the Elks’ shows, Department funds intended for the DARE program, and other moneys intended for the DARE program, to his own uses, including paying his credit cards and other creditors.    

5. Based on the conduct in Finding 4, McCloud pleaded guilty to, was found guilty of, and was sentenced for:

a. felony fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1341 and 2, and 

b. felony embezzlement in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 666(a)(1)(A).  

United States v. McCloud, Case No. 4:99CR235JCH (E.D. Mo., May 11, 2000).  

Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear the Director’s complaint.  Sections 621.045
 and 590.135.2. The Director has the burden of proving that McCloud has committed conduct for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm'n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  

A.

The Director argues that McCloud is subject to discipline under section 590.135.2(1), which allows discipline for:

Conviction of a felony including the receiving of a suspended imposition of a sentence following a plea or finding of guilty to a felony charge[.]

McCloud’s felony convictions are cause for discipline under section 590.135.2(1).  

B.

The Director also argues that McCloud is subject to discipline under section 590.135.2(6), which allows discipline for:

Gross misconduct indicating inability to function as a peace officer[.]

Misconduct means “the willful doing of an act with a wrongful intention[;] intentional wrongdoing.”  Missouri Bd. for Arch’ts, Prof’l Eng’rs & Land Surv’rs v. Duncan, No. AR-84-0239, at 125 (Mo. Admin. Hearing Comm’n, Nov. 15, 1985), aff’d, 744 S.W.2d 524 (Mo. App., E.D. 1988).  The term “gross” indicates that either an especially egregious mental state or harm is required.  Id. at 533.  The duties of a peace officer include “maintaining public order, preventing and detecting crimes and enforcing the laws.”  Baer v. Civilian Personnel Div., St. Louis Police Officers Ass’n, 747 S.W.2d 159, 161 (Mo. App., W.D. 1988) (citing Jackson County v. Missouri Bd. of Mediation, 690 S.W.2d 400, 403 (Mo. banc 1985)).  

McCloud’s guilty plea is a declaration against interest that he committed the acts charged.  Nichols v. Blake, 418 S.W.2d 188, 190 (Mo. 1967).  For a peace officer to embezzle money entrusted to him for drug education by his employer and his lodge is an especially egregious wrong.  It demonstrates that McCloud cannot maintain public order.  

We conclude that McCloud is subject to discipline under section 590.135.2(6).  

Summary


The Director has shown that McCloud is subject to discipline under section 590.135.2(1) and (6).


SO ORDERED on February 22, 2001.



________________________________



KAREN A. WINN



Commissioner

�All statutory references are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri.
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